MINUTES REGULAR MEETING BOROUGH OF SEA BRIGHT

MARCH 7, 2023

SEA BRIGHT, NEW JERSEY

TO ATTEND THIS MEETING REMOTELY PLEASE USE THE FOLLOWING:

https://meet.goto.com/321899829 OR DIAL: +1 (646) 749-3122 Access Code: 321-899-829

Mayor Kelly called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. and requested those present to join in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Mayor Kelly read the following Compliance Statement:

Good Evening Ladies and Gentlemen. This Meeting Is Now Called To Order: In Line with The Borough of Sea Bright's Longstanding Policy of Open Government, and in Compliance with the "Open Public Meetings Act" I Wish to Advise You That Adequate Notice of This Regularly Scheduled Meeting Was Sent to the Asbury Park Press and other local newspapers on January 10, 2023. In each instance, the Date, Time, And Location of This Meeting Were Provided in The Notice. This Meeting Is Open To The Public."

PRESENT: Mayor Brian P. Kelly

Councilmembers, Erwin Bieber, Jefferey M. Booker Sr., Samuel A. Catalano,

Heather Gorman, William J. Keeler Councilmember John M. Lamia, Jr.

OTHERS: Attorney Richard Shaklee, Administrator Joseph Verruni,

Borough Clerk Christine Pfeiffer

REMARKS FROM THE AUDIENCE (limited to 3 minutes)

The Public Comment portion of this meeting allows members of the audience to bring their concerns or comments to the Mayor and Council's attention. Pursuant to Borough Ordinance 3-2011, a member of the public who wishes to speak shall give his/her name and address for the record and may have up to three minutes to state his/her comments to the Mayor and Council as a Body. If additional time or information is requested, an appointment can be made with the Administrator's office during regular business hours.

Dermot Farley, 1 South Street, followed up on an email he sent to the Governing Body, expressing his concerns regarding parking issues in the downtown. Mayor Kelly explained that we are going to have a council committee do some research and recommend a solution which will accommodate all residents as best as possible. Councilman Bieber will chair the committee which will include Councilwoman Gorman and one other Councilmember – they will include Mr. Farley and any other concerned residents in their discussions as well as the Chief of Police.

CONSENT AGENDA

Councilmember Keeler offered a motion to approve the items that are considered routine in nature under the consent agenda; seconded by Councilmember Bieber:

Minutes

ABSENT:

02-16-2023Workshop Meeting02-16-2023Executive Session02-21-2023Regular Meeting

Roll Call: Bieber, Booker, Catalano, Gorman, Keeler, Lamia

Yes Yes Yes Yes Absent

Resolutions:

No. 58-2023 Hiring Volunteer Firefighters Borough of Sea Bright Fire Department

Councilmember Keeler offered the following resolution for approval; seconded by Councilmember Bieber:

WHEREAS, Chapter 20, Section 20.4 of the General Code, Fire Department membership requires any person desiring membership in a volunteer fire department, shall complete an application; may be required to have a pre-appointment physical by a physician; and the Borough Council shall order a criminal background check to be conducted by the Chief of Police; and

WHEREAS, the Fire Department received applications from the following individuals, all preappointment requirements have been met and the Fire Chief recommends they be hired to serve as a volunteer firefighters in the Sea Bright Fire/Rescue Department:

Full Membership

Sean McBride Jr. James Voorhis Shane Winslow

Seasonal Membership

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Borough Council of the Borough of Sea Bright, County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, does hereby accept and approve appointing the abovenamed individuals to serve as members in the Sea Bright Fire Department; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Borough Clerk is hereby authorized to send a certified copy of this resolution to the following:

- 1. Sea Bright Fire Chief
- 2. Individual Members

Roll Call: Bieber, Booker, Catalano, Gorman, Keeler, Lamia Yes Yes Yes Yes Absent

ORDINANCE(s):

Public Hearing: Mayor Kelly to read the ordinance by title:

ORDINANCE NO. 02-2023 AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOROUGH OF SEA BRIGHT ADOPTING A PURCHASING MANUAL

Councilmember Bieber offered a motion to open the public hearing on Ordinance No. 02-2023; seconded by Councilmember Keeler:

Roll Call: Bieber, Booker, Catalano, Gorman, Keeler, Lamia

Yes Yes Yes Yes Absent

Public Hearing (Ord. No. 02-2023)

No one wished to be heard.

Councilmember Keeler offered a motion to close the public hearing on Ordinance No. 02-2023; seconded by Councilmember Booker:

Roll Call: Bieber, Booker, Catalano, Gorman, Keeler, Lamia

Yes Yes Yes Yes Absent

Councilmember Booker offered a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 02-2023 and advertise according to law; seconded by Councilmember Bieber:

Roll Call: Bieber, Booker, Catalano, Gorman, Keeler, Lamia

Yes Yes Yes Yes Absent

WHEREAS, the Borough of Sea Bright finds it prudent to periodically review its policies and procedures; and

WHEREAS, in furtherance of such goals, the Borough previously has from time to time adopted purchasing policies, with the most recent purchasing manual adopted in February, 2007; and

WHEREAS, the Borough has reviewed the provisions of its current manual and finds that modifications are warranted; and

WHEREAS, the Chief Financial Officer of the Borough of Sea Bright has determined that it is in the best interest of the Borough and its residents to amend said Purchasing Manual.

Now, therefore, be it ordained, by the Borough Council of the Borough of Sea Bright in the County of Monmouth and the State of New Jersey as follows:

Section One.

The purpose of this purchasing manual is to describe the purchasing system of the Borough of Sea Bright. The primary focus of this manual is on the purchase of goods and services. A section of the manual is devoted to Statutory and Mandated services. The rules under which the borough's purchasing system functions are governed by the Local Public Contracts Law of the state. In addition, certain township ordinances govern certain aspects of the purchasing system.

This manual is intended to serve as a general guide to the borough's purchasing system. It is not the intent of this manual to address every question. Any questions which may arise and are not covered by this manual may be directed to the Chief Financial Officer.

A key rule to follow is that all purchases must be approved prior to the purchase being made. The process begins with the submission of a requisition form. <u>Purchases made without following the procedures contained in this manual are the responsibility of the employee making the purchase. The borough has no obligation to make payment for any purchases made outside of these procedures. An employee who fails to comply with these purchasing requirements shall be subject to disciplinary action as may be appropriate.</u>

FINANCE DEPARTMENT ROLE

The Borough Finance Department administers the purchasing system. All processing of submitted requisitions, purchase orders and vouchers, as well as related record keeping is performed by the Finance Office. Departments are directed to limit their relationship with vendors to contact which is necessary to aid in obtaining quotes and specification information.

The Finance Office has the obligation to coordinate vendors and using department requirements in such a manner as to assure fairness to the vendor and satisfaction of the using department. The CFO or Administrator may, at their discretion, substitute other goods of equal quality for the items requested when it is in the best interest of the borough to do so.

Another function of the Finance Office shall be the administration of a centralized purchasing system which exercises control on purchasing independent of, but in cooperation with all departments. The Finance Office will, through the administration of such a system, control spending within the budget to avoid over expenditures and provide greater financial control.

DEPARTMENTAL REQUISITIONS

By definition, a requisition is a document requesting goods or services with quantity and price, *submitted prior to purchase*. Departmental requisitions must be utilized by a department to request authorization to purchase from the Finance Office. This document serves two very important functions. It provides a record for the Department Head on requested purchases, and it supplies the necessary information to the Finance Office who will use the completed form to produce a purchase order.

Any department wishing to make a purchase should accurately complete a requisition form by following the instructions outlined in **Appendix A** of this manual. Upon completion of a properly prepared requisition, all should be forwarded to the Finance Office for approval.

Once approved, the Finance Office will utilize the requisition in the preparation of the purchase order.

In addition, the Finance Office may obtain price quotations in addition to those collected by the using department to ensure that the lowest possible price is obtained. The CFO and/or designee will review all purchases to ensure compliance with State Law.

Proper planning and preparation of requisitions in ordering goods and services are very useful planning tools. This can assist all Department heads in the overall administration of their budgets.

Requisitions which are denied will be returned to the department which originated the request.

REQUISITIONS NOT MANDATORY

Certain borough expenses do not require a requisition prior to encumbering the borough. These items follow the regular purchasing procedure prior to issuance of payment, however, do not require Council signature and approval prior to placement on a bill list.

They include:

Debt Service
Insurance
Pension, Social Security, and Unemployment
Tax Payments to County, School, and Fire Dist.
Public Assistance
Municipal Escrow Accounts
Tax Appeals and Refunds

REGULAR MEETING

Medicare Reimbursements Election Board Members and Polling Places Contractual Payments Other Items as Approved

PURCHASE ORDERS

The purchase order is a numbered form which fulfills many different functions. A general rule in purchasing is not to buy anything without an authorized purchase order and/or purchase order number.

A purchase order is a vendor's authority to sell a particular material or service to the borough. Without this authority, the borough has no obligation to accept or pay for any materials or services rendered. If this situation occurs the obligation to pay would be on the employee who placed the order.

The purchase order contains important information regarding payment procedures for the vendor and is the document used by the vendor to submit his/her claim for payment.

The Borough's Finance Office prepares all purchase orders from approved requisitions submitted by the various departments. It should be noted that it is the responsibility of the department to make sure that items requested are the exact items and quality needed for the purpose intended. Once a purchase order is prepared it shall be immediately encumbered before it is sent to the vendor.

The department is sent a copy of the purchase order and is responsible for forwarding it to the vendor to place the order. The PO also supplies the department with a record of what exactly was ordered and from whom. Department heads should use this form to keep track of materials not yet received.

The PO must be signed by the vendor and the Department Head certifying receipt of the materials or services prior to payment. After the PO is signed by the department personnel, it is sent back to the Finance Office. Upon receipt, the Finance Office will process the PO for payment. The Finance Department compiles a bill list from the posted PO's and prepares the checks which are then submitted to the Borough Council for approval. After the Borough Council approves the bill list, the checks can be released to the vendors. All pertinent information such as check number and date paid is entered on each PO and kept on file in the Finance Department as the permanent record of all purchases borough wide.

SIGNATURES

There are three signatures on the purchase order all of which are extremely important and required to complete the purchasing process. The first signature required certifies that sufficient funds are available in the budget to pay for the purchase. The vendor's signature on the voucher is indication that services have been rendered and the bill is correct. This is called the claimant's certification and declaration. Next is the departmental certification which is proof that the materials and/or services have been received at the specified amount on the invoice.

ESTIMATES

There are occasions when the total price for services will not be known until the work has been completed. In order to accommodate these situations, a procedure for dealing with estimates has been developed.

When a situation as described above develops, a requisition should be prepared and processed as normal. The requisition should include the estimated price for the work. Once the purchase order is prepared and processed, the department will be supplied with the purchase order number. This number shall be provided to the vendor as his authorization to complete the work. Once the work is completed, the total price and invoices shall be given to the Finance Office. This information will be used to complete the purchase order. When the purchase order is completed, it will be sent to the vendor as a confirmation purchase order. Any increase in an estimate must be made by requisition with the appropriate documentation at the time of the increase.

BLANKET PURCHASE ORDERS

In certain circumstances, when a vendor is to be paid on a regular basis or several purchases will be made over a period, one blanket purchase order may be issued.

Under this system a single purchase order is issued to the vendor, when purchases are made, the Borough will apply invoices submitted for payment against the previously issued purchase order. Each PO shall be identified by indicating how many payments have been made. The numbering of all PO's is handled by the Finance Office. Under no circumstances shall any other department number the vouchers.

The purchase order amount can be increased. However, the request for an increase must be made by requisition or resolution and processed through the normal procedures. In the case of bids, the amount may be increased only by the amount as provided by State Law. Requests for an increase must be processed prior to the end of the month and before any additional purchases are made.

EMERGENCY PURCHASES

There are times when emergencies do arise which require the need for the immediate purchase of materials and supplies. Emergencies are situations where there exists the need to protect the safety, health and welfare of the general public.

It is the responsibility of every department to utilize proper planning in ordering materials and supplies. Emergency buying can be very costly and time consuming. Requisitions should be prepared far enough in advance of need to minimize emergency situations. The key to avoiding emergency situations is utilization of proper planning procedures.

The following procedures are to be followed when making emergency purchases:

Emergency purchases under \$500.00 must be submitted to the Finance Office by the next working day, accompanied by a memorandum to the CFO and Borough Administrator indicating the nature of the emergency purchase.

Emergency purchases over \$500.00 require the approval of the CFO or Treasurer. If they can not be reached, the Administrator, Mayor or Council President must approve the purchase. If neither can be reached, the department head must document the attempts to make contact. If the purchase exceeds \$10,000.00 the Chief Financial Officer must be notified.

In all the above cases, the Department Head must, within 24 hours of the purchase, process a requisition through the normal procedures. Attached to the requisition, in addition to the invoices, there should be a statement indicating what the nature of the emergency was and why a purchase had to be made. Once a purchase order is prepared, it will be sent to the vendor as a confirmation purchase order.

Under no circumstances are these procedures to be utilized to circumvent the normal purchasing system.

EXPEDITED PURCHASE ORDER

The processing of requisitions may take several days. Recognizing that there are times when materials and supplies are needed immediately, an expedited procedure has been developed.

Under this procedure, a requisition is accelerated through the approval process. A requisition is entered into Edmunds and the Department Head will then notify the Finance Office, who will take immediate action to secure proper approval. A purchase order is promptly processed in order that the department obtain the needed material and supplies.

PAYMENT PROCEDURE

It is important for departments to understand the Borough's payment procedure and its relationship to the encumbrance system. The key to the system is that funds must be encumbered prior to the issuance The Borough of Sea Bright pays bills the day following each scheduled meeting of the Governing Body. Therefore, it is important that all paperwork needed for payment be handled in a timely manner. All PO's must be signed by a Department Head and the vendor prior to being placed on the bill list.

SURPLUS EQUIPMENT

Surplus or outdated equipment may be disposed of in any of the following ways:

- 1. Transfer to another Borough Department.
- 2. Trade-in on new equipment.
- 3. Sale at public auction.
- 4. Sale as scrap.

In disposing of any equipment, all spare parts for the equipment should be disposed of at the same time.

All surplus equipment and/or materials shall be reported to the Borough Clerk's Office.

If surplus equipment is sold it will be done through the Clerk's Office. Sale of said equipment will be conducted in accordance with State Law.

The Finance Office must be notified of any surplus items that have been disposed of in order to update the Fixed Asset records.

CANCELLED ORDERS

If, after an order is placed, it is decided that the materials and/or services are no longer needed, the Finance Office should be notified as quickly as possible. The Department Head and/or Finance Office will notify the vendor to cancel the order. A delay in notifying the vendor may result in an unnecessary expense to the Borough.

Adequate thought and planning given to purchases prior to making out requisitions will prevent orders they need from being cancelled.

PERSONAL EXPENSES

Employees can submit vouchers for personal expenses. However, under no circumstances may an employee receiving reimbursement sign the Borough certification on the voucher. (These expenses may also be handled through the normal requisition process.)

CONFERENCES AND SEMINARS

Expenses in connection with attendance at seminars and conferences will be handled as described below.

A requisition should be prepared prior to the event with an estimate of the cost indicating the maximum an employee may spend. All claims for reimbursement of expenses must be submitted on a voucher or requisition. All receipts and documentation must be submitted with the voucher. Only the Borough employee authorized to attend the seminar or conference can be reimbursed for expenses incurred.

Reimbursable expenses may include meals, tolls, room, registration fees and transportation costs outlined by the Borough policy.

PETTY CASH

There are times when it is more economical and efficient to pay cash for an item when the total amount of a purchase does not exceed \$20.00.

To eliminate this extra work, a cash payment may be authorized by the Department Head. A signed cash receipt must be obtained prior to any reimbursement from the petty cash fund. Any petty cash drawn from the fund will be charged back to the using department's budget.

All purchases must be approved by the Finance Office prior to the actual purchase being made.

The use of the petty cash fund is not to be used to circumvent the regular purchasing procedures. Such expenditures are limited to personal expenses, travel expenses and small emergency purchases.

SPECIFICATION WRITING

Specification writing is a very important part of the purchasing system. A detailed description of the equipment or its purpose must be stated.

There are specifications available which should be reviewed when bid documents are prepared. When prepared, the specifications should be detailed enough to permit the bidder to offer exactly the right product. If the specifications are too ambiguous, the bidder will most likely offer the cheapest product. However, specifications should not be written so tightly to unnecessarily restrict vendors from bidding as a guideline, specification should be written to promote competition without bias.

All specifications written for the Borough shall be prepared by a designated department, or individual, on a case-to-case basis. Departments may be requested to submit sample specifications from time to time. It is the responsibility of each department to meet with the Finance Office to ensure that the quantity and quality of the items being ordered are the required materials and/or services for the work that is to be undertaken.

Section Two.

All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance, to the extent of such inconsistencies only, be and the same hereby are repealed.

Section Three.

This Ordinance shall take effective immediately upon final passage and publication as provided by law.

<u>Public Hearing:</u> Mayor Kelly to read the ordinance by title:

ORDINANCE NO. 03-2023 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 201, "VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC", OF THE CODE OF THE BOROUGH OF SEA BRIGHT

Councilmember Bieber offered a motion to open the public hearing on Ordinance No. 03-2023; seconded by Councilmember Keeler:

Roll Call: Bieber, Booker, Catalano, Gorman, Keeler, Lamia Yes Yes Yes Yes Absent

Public Hearing (Ord. No. 03-2023)

No one wished to be heard.

Councilmember Keeler offered a motion to close the public hearing on Ordinance No. 03-2023; seconded by Councilmember Booker:

Roll Call: Bieber, Booker, Catalano, Gorman, Keeler, Lamia Yes Yes Yes Yes Absent

Councilmember Bieber offered a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 03-2023 and advertise according to law; seconded by Councilmember Keeler:

Roll Call: Bieber, Booker, Catalano, Gorman, Keeler, Lamia Yes Yes Yes Yes Absent **BE IT ORDAINED** by the Borough Council of the Borough of Sea Bright in the County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, as follows:

SECTION ONE: Chapter 201, "Vehicles and Traffic", of the Code of the Borough of Sea Bright, Article V, "Residential Parking" Section 201-34, "Violations and Penalties" subsection 201-34D, be and the same is hereby amended and supplemented to read, in full, as follows:

"D. Any person who violates the provisions of § 201-30 herein shall be subject to a fine in the minimum amount of \$150.00 and not to exceed \$300.00 and shall forfeit the right to receive or use a resident parking permit for a period of three years."

SECTION TWO: Chapter 201, "Vehicles and Traffic", of the Code of the Borough of Sea Bright, Article VI, "Ocean Avenue Residential Permit Parking", Section 201-41, "Violations and Penalties" subsection 201-41C, be and the same is hereby amended and supplemented to read, in full, as follows:

"C. Any person who violates § 201-37 shall be subject to a fine in the minimum amount of \$150.00 and not to exceed \$300.00 and shall forfeit the right to receive or use an Ocean Avenue resident parking permit under this Chapter for a period of three years."

SECTION THREE: Chapter 201, "Vehicles and Traffic", of the Code of the Borough of Sea Bright, Article VII, "Business Permit Parking", Section 201-48, "Violations and Penalties", subsection 201-48C, be and the same is hereby amended and supplemented to read, in full, as follows:

"C. Any person who violates § 201-44 shall be subject to a fine in the minimum amount of \$150.00 and not to exceed \$300.00 and shall forfeit the right to receive or use an Ocean Avenue business parking permit under this Chapter for a period of three years."

SECTION FOUR: All Ordinances or parts thereof inconsistent with the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistencies.

SECTION FIVE: If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence or other portion of this Ordinance be adjudged by a Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remainder of this Ordinance.

SECTION SIX: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage and publication according to law and upon filing with the Monmouth County Planning Board.

<u>Public Hearing:</u> Mayor Kelly to read the ordinance by title:

ORDINANCE NO. 04-2023 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 9, "CLAIMS APPROVAL", OF THE CODE OF THE BOROUGH OF SEA BRIGHT.

Councilmember Booker offered a motion to open the public hearing on Ordinance No. 04-2023; seconded by Councilmember Keeler:

Roll Call: Bieber, Booker, Catalano, Gorman, Keeler, Lamia Yes Yes Yes Yes Absent

Public Hearing (Ord. No. 04-2023)

No one wished to be heard.

Councilmember Keeler offered a motion to close the public hearing on Ordinance No. 04-2023; seconded by Councilmember Booker:

Roll Call: Bieber, Booker, Catalano, Gorman, Keeler, Lamia Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Absent

Councilmember Booker offered a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 04-2023 and advertise according to law; seconded by Councilmember Keeler:

Roll Call: Bieber, Booker, Catalano, Gorman, Keeler, Lamia Yes Yes Yes Yes Absent

BE IT ORDAINED by the Borough Council of the Borough Sea Bright in the County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, as follows:

SECTION ONE: Chapter 9, "Claims Approval," of the Code of the Borough of Sea Bright, be and the same is hereby amended and supplemented to read, in full, as follows:

Chapter 9. Claims Approval

§ 9-1 Submission of detailed statement; certification of facts.

Any person claiming payment from the Borough of Sea Bright shall first submit a detailed statement of the items or demand necessitating such claim to the responsible executive agency specifying particularly how the bill or demand is made up and a certification of the party claiming payment that it is correct. No bill, claim or demand shall be considered for payment unless the voucher has attached to it (or includes) a certification from a designated Borough employee having personal knowledge of the facts that the goods have been received by or the services rendered to the Borough of Sea Bright and that those services or goods are consistent with an existing contract or purchase order.

In order to facilitate a timely review, bills, claims and demands must be submitted to the Borough within 30 (thirty) days, unless otherwise specified by law or contract, following the provision of goods or rendering of services for which payment is sought. The Chief Financial Officer is authorized to provide extensions upon written request in his or her discretion. This requirement shall be a term that is contained in each contract entered into by the Borough.

§ 9-2 **Designation of Certifying and Approval Officer.**

The Chief Financial Officer is hereby designated as the approval officer pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:5-17 with the title of "Certifying and Approval Officer" and shall have the duty to audit, warrant and make recommendations on all claims and bills.

§ 9-3 **Submission of bill or claim to Clerk.**

It shall be the duty of the *Finance Manager* to examine all bills or claims submitted for payment in order to ascertain if proper administrative procedures have been followed. The bills or claims, duly certified, shall be presented to the Municipal Clerk for inclusion in the proceedings of the next immediate formal meeting of the governing body. All claims or bills to be considered by the governing body shall be listed systematically and without preference and said list shall be made available to every member of said governing body at least one full day prior to formal action by that body.

§ 9-4 Approval or rejection of claim.

Claims shall be considered by the Council which shall approve the same, except that said governing body may reject any claim presented to it, stating the reason for such rejection. Any tie votes may be broken by vote of the Mayor. Any disapproved claim shall be referred to the *Finance Manager* with such instructions as the governing body may give at the time of disapproval.

§ 9-5 **Records.**

It shall be the duty of the Municipal Clerk to record all claims in the official minutes or through an appropriate claims register, indicating that the governing body has by formal action approved the same, with appropriate records as to any claims disapproved or rejected. All records pertaining to approved or disapproved bills or claims shall be available for public inspection.

§ 9-6 **Disbursements and payments.**

The *Finance Manager* shall make disbursements upon receipt of an order by the Borough Council, attested by the Borough Clerk. If in the event that the Mayor vetoes the payment of any claims or bills, the Chief Financial Officer may be authorized to make payment by a vote of the Borough Council whereby at least 2/3 of *Council* vote to override such veto of any claim or bill.

\S 9-7 Preparation and recording of checks.

After the *Municipal* Clerk has certified that the claims have been approved, *he/she* shall turn the same over to the *Finance Manager* who shall forthwith prepare the necessary checks for the payment thereof, which said checks shall be signed by the Mayor and thereafter signed by the *Finance Manager*. After preparing checks for the payment of claims, *he/she* shall record them in proper books of account and thereafter mail the checks to the claimants.

SECTION TWO: All Ordinances or parts thereof inconsistent with the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistencies.

SECTION THREE: If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence or other portion of this Ordinance be adjudged by a Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remainder of this Ordinance.

SECTION FOUR: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage and publication according to law and upon filing with the Monmouth County Planning Board.

INDIVIDUAL ACTION/New Business:

Vouchers: \$ 418,893.24

Councilmember Booker offered a motion to approve the $\underline{\text{Voucher List}}$ dated March 7, 2023 as submitted by the Finance Manager; seconded by Councilmember Keeler:

Roll Call:		Booker, Yes		Gorman, Yes		
2790 ACB 23-00163 02/			ounds	Open	3,88	38.73
01062 ALL 23-00166 02/			, LLC	Open	50	00.00
01631 BORG 23-00262 03/				Open	6,50	00.00
01565 BORG 23-00265 03/				Open	2,1	07.50
00609 EAGI 23-00173 02/		N		Open	7,98	82.73
23-00147 02/	/03/23 Annu /03/23 Annu	al PM - En al Mainten	gine 43 ance - Squad ance - Ladde	43 Open	2,4	85.00 85.00 85.00
01288 FISLER, CHRISTOPHER 23-00238 02/28/23 POLICE					8,8	55.00
				Open	1,275.00	
2406 FP N 23-00237 02/	/27/23 POST.	AGE MACHIN	E	Open	!	98.85
02101 GANN 23-00272 03/				Open	!	54.56
00097 GARI 23-00084 01/				Open	10	04.50
2710 HOLN 23-00260 03/				Open	3,5	67.17
01285 HOME 23-00170 02/				Open	:	29.98
01419 J. S 23-00233 02/		L OIL CO.,	INC.	Open	4,2	56.00
2573 JCP 23-00269 03/		TRIC		Open	7,2:	23.79
2455 JERS 23-00245 02/				Open	2,5	05.00
00297 JESS 23-00261 03/			INC.	Open	1,70	05.00
2804 LEGA 23-00268 03/				Open	!	95.00
2876 M & 23-00161 02/		ATIONS, IN	C.	Open	42	20.02
2552 MANN 23-00277 03/		CE		Open	1,2	75.00
2417 MARI 23-00263 03/				Open	1:	20.10
00106 MGL 23-00241 02/				Open	!	56.00
2838 MOB3 23-00236 02/			G SYS	Open	:	28.00
00688 MONN 23-00162 02/		Y POLICE A	CADEMY	Open	2,00	00.00
00109 MONN		Y POLICE C	HIEF'S			
23-00087 01/ 23-00088 01/				Open Open		00.00 50.00
02045 MONIN	MONMOUTH COUNTY 0 03/01/23 ANIMA	Y SPCA			6.	50.00
				Open	32	25.00

00441 MONMOUTH COUNTY TREASURER		0 500 00
23-00137 02/03/23 23-00264 03/01/23 911 SERVICE	Open Open	2,500.00 88,237.00
25 00201 05/01/25 JII BHWICH	open -	
01.000		90,737.00
01399 NEW JERSEY AMERICAN WATER 23-00243 02/28/23 WATER	Open	4,632.80
23 00213 02/20/23 WIIBN	Ореп	1,002.00
00020 NJ ASSOC OF CHIEFS OF POLICE		
23-00168 02/10/23	Open	275.00
01810 NJ DEPT OF HEALTH		
23-00258 03/01/23 ANIMAL	Open	12.60
00113 NJ NATURAL GAS COMPANY		
23-00235 02/27/23 NAT GAS	Open	3,942.66
01309 OCEANPORT BOARD OF EDUCATION 22-00760 06/28/22 SCHOOL TAX	Open	73,450.92
22 00700 00720722 Behoof HM	Ореп	73, 130.32
00046 ONE CALL CONCEPTS, INC.		24.20
23-00271 03/02/23 SEWER	Open	34.32
2290 PORZIO, BROMBERG & NEWMAN		
23-00240 02/28/23 LEGAL	Open	1,171.01
00164 RAIN, WILLIAM		
23-00234 02/27/23 HEALTH	Open	161.00
2330 RAW POWER GENERATOR SERVICE		
2330 RAW POWER GENERATOR SERVICE 23-00058 01/12/23 Buildings & Grounds	Open	887.50
23-00065 01/12/23 Sewer Department	Open	731.00
	-	1 610 50
2728 READY REFRESH BY NESTLE		1,618.50
23-00244 02/28/23	Open	77.34
01554 SEA BRIGHT SERVICE CENTER		
23-00165 02/10/23 Streets & Roads	Open	1,479.30
00053 SHORE REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL 22-00758 06/28/22 SCHOOL TAX	Open	181,370.18
22 00/00 00/20/22 bonoon iim	open	101/0/0110
2855 STANLEY ACCESS TECHNOLOGIES	0	275 00
23-00057 01/12/23 Buildings & Grounds	Open	375.00
02225 STAPLES ADVANTAGE		
23-00156 02/03/23 OFFICE 23-00169 02/10/23	Open	197.23 121.49
23-00109 02/10/23	Open -	121.49
		318.72
00178 UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE 23-00267 03/01/23 POSTAGE	Open	290.00
23-00207 03701723 F031AGE	open	290.00
2658 VERIZON	_	
23-00270 03/02/23 FIOS 23-00273 03/02/23 SEWER	Open Open	70.48 454.25
23-00274 03/02/23 POLICE	Open	73.80
23-00275 03/02/23 PHONE	Open	225.44
	-	823.97
2291 VERIZON		023.91
23-00276 03/02/23 fios	Open	89.99
2877 ZAGER FUCHS, PC		
23-00266 03/01/23 PLAN BOARD	Open	2,410.00

GRAND TOTAL: \$ 418,893.24

MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS

Mayor Kelly reported that there were 90 cement trucks came that through town yesterday for the bridge project and they will be back with another convoy at the end of the month. Our Easter Egg Hunt is scheduled for April $1^{\rm st}$ at 1:00pm and Rumson's St. Patrick's Day parade is this Sunday at 1:00pm. The Historical Society is planning to open soon – they are requesting donations, specifically a laptop and various office supplies. Mayor Kelly also stated that he plans to send out a mailer to all residents providing and update on current projects and events in the Borough.

Councilman Catalano reported progress.

Councilwoman Gorman stated that the recreation center is in need of repair on the east wall. The first Recreation Committee meeting will be happening this month and the team will come together with the community to look at potential programs and will make recommendations to Council. She has been in contact with our website provider, ZUMU, and has requested some changes be made to improve our website.

Councilman Bieber reported that he attended a ZOOM meeting with the NJDOT and they are looking to fully fund five mid-block crosswalks within the next couple years – he will discuss this further at the upcoming workshop meeting. There were two crosswalks requested by Ship Ahoy and Sands Beach Club prior to this safety program was initiated which included a cost share allocation – the DOT will provide the cost estimate to the Borough to have a follow up with the Clubs. Councilman Bieber reported he held a meeting to look at beach ordinance enforcement related to smoking, alcohol, and dogs on the beach and plans to make a recommendation to Council soon. Progress is being made with the bulkhead improvement initiative as Borough Engineer Greg Blash continues to work on a plan and CFO Michael Bascom recommends applying for FEMA pre-disaster funding opportunities.

Councilman Keeler said he would like to include information about bike safety in the next mailer to residents.

Councilman Booker explained that we are continuing to go through the budget process and everyone has done a great job.

Jack Gotti, 11 River Street, asked if there have been a resolution for the flooding on River Street and said the storm drains are all collapsed. Administrator Verruni explained that we have money allocated in our budget this year to improve storm and sewer rehabilitation. Mr. Gotti expressed his frustration with the flooding and hopes to see improvement soon as this has been going on for years. Mr. Verruni explained that a new pump station will be installed as part of the new downtown redevelopment which will alleviate the water in that intersection. Mr. Gotti believes that the problem is a collapsed pipe from Ocean Avenue to River Street - Mayor Kelly will speak with the Borough Engineer.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Executive session not held.

ADJOURNMENT

Councilmember Booker offered a motion to adjourn the meeting; seconded by Councilmember Keeler:

Roll Call: Bieber, Booker, Catalano, Gorman, Keeler, Lamia

Yes Yes Yes Yes Absent

Respectfully Submitted,

Christine Pfeiffer Borough Clerk